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1 Petitioning firms include Atlas Spring, Gardena, 
CA; Hickory Springs Manufacturing Co., Hickory, 
NC; Leggett & Platt, Carthage, MO; and Joseph Saval 
Spring & Wire Co., Inc., Taylor, MI.

2 Uncovered innerspring units are composed of a 
series of individual metal springs wired together 
and fitted to an outer wire frame and are suitable 
for use as the innerspring component in the 
manufacture of innerspring mattresses. The 
imported products are provided for in statistical 
reporting number 9404.29.9010 of the Harmonized 
Tariff Schedule of the United States (HTS). 
Although the HTS category is provided for 
convenience and Customs purposes, the written 
description of the merchandise under investigation 
is dispositive.

Trade Act of 1974 (19 U.S.C. 2451(b)) 
(the Act).

SUMMARY: Following receipt of a petition 
filed on January 6, 2004, on behalf of the 
U.S. member companies of The 
American Innerspring Manufacturers 
(AIM),1 Memphis, TN, the Commission 
instituted investigation No. TA–421–5, 
Innersprings from China, under section 
421(b) of the Act to determine whether 
uncovered innerspring units 
(innersprings) 2 from China are being 
imported into the United States in such 
increased quantities or under such 
conditions as to cause or threaten to 
cause market disruption to the domestic 
producers of like or directly competitive 
products.

For further information concerning 
the conduct of this investigation, 
hearing procedures, and rules of general 
application, consult the Commission’s 
Rules of Practice and Procedure, part 
201, subparts A through E (19 CFR part 
201), and part 206, subparts A and E (19 
CFR part 206), as amended, 68 FR 65164 
(Nov. 19, 2003).
EFFECTIVE DATE: January 6, 2004.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Brian Allen (202–708–4728), Office of 
Investigations, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street SW., 
Washington, DC 20436. Hearing-
impaired persons can obtain 
information on this matter by contacting 
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202–
205–1810. Persons with mobility 
impairments who will need special 
assistance in gaining access to the 
Commission should contact the Office 
of the Secretary at 202–205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server (http://
www.usitc.gov). The public record for 
this investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at http://edis.usitc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
Participation in the investigation and 
service list. Persons wishing to 
participate in the investigation as 
parties must file an entry of appearance 

with the Secretary to the Commission, 
as provided in section 201.11 of the 
Commission’s rules, not later than seven 
days after publication of this notice in 
the Federal Register. The Secretary will 
prepare a service list containing the 
names and addresses of all persons, or 
their representatives, who are parties to 
this investigation upon the expiration of 
the period for filing entries of 
appearance.

Limited disclosure of confidential 
business information (CBI) under an 
administrative protective order (APO) 
and CBI service list. Pursuant to section 
206.47 of the Commission’s rules, the 
Secretary will make CBI gathered in this 
investigation available to authorized 
applicants under the APO issued in the 
investigation, provided that the 
application is made not later than seven 
days after the publication of this notice 
in the Federal Register. A separate 
service list will be maintained by the 
Secretary for those parties authorized to 
receive CBI under the APO.

Hearing. The Commission has 
scheduled a hearing in connection with 
this investigation beginning at 9:30 a.m. 
on February 19, 2004, at the U.S. 
International Trade Commission 
Building. Subjects related to both 
market disruption or threat thereof and 
remedy may be addressed at the 
hearing. Requests to appear at the 
hearing should be filed in writing with 
the Secretary to the Commission on or 
before February 10, 2004. All persons 
desiring to appear at the hearing and 
make oral presentations should attend a 
prehearing conference to be held at 9:30 
a.m. on February 13, 2004, at the U.S. 
International Trade Commission 
Building. Oral testimony and written 
materials to be submitted at the hearing 
are governed by sections 201.6(b)(2) and 
201.13(f) of the Commission’s rules.

Written submissions. Each party is 
encouraged to submit a prehearing brief 
to the Commission. The deadline for 
filing prehearing briefs is February 12, 
2004. Parties may also file posthearing 
briefs. The deadline for filing 
posthearing briefs is February 24, 2004. 
In addition, any person who has not 
entered an appearance as a party to the 
investigation may submit a written 
statement of information pertinent to 
the consideration of market disruption 
or threat thereof and/or remedy on or 
before February 24, 2004. Parties may 
submit final comments on market 
disruption on March 4, 2004, and on 
remedy on March 11, 2004. All written 
submissions must conform with the 
provisions of section 201.8 of the 
Commission’s rules; any submissions 
that contain CBI must also conform with 
the requirements of section 201.6 of the 

Commission’s rules. The Commission’s 
rules do not authorize filing of 
submissions with the Secretary by 
facsimile or electronic means, except to 
the extent permitted by section 201.8 of 
the Commission’s rules, as amended, 67 
FR 68036 (November 8, 2002).

In accordance with section 201.16(c) 
of the Commission’s rules, each 
document filed by a party to the 
investigation must be served on all other 
parties to the investigation (as identified 
by the service list), and a certificate of 
service must be timely filed. The 
Secretary will not accept a document for 
filing without a certificate of service.

Remedy. Parties are reminded that no 
separate hearing on the issue of remedy 
will be held. Those parties wishing to 
present arguments on the issue of 
remedy may do so orally at the hearing 
or in their prehearing briefs, posthearing 
briefs, or final comments on remedy.

Authority: This investigation is being 
conducted under the authority of section 421 
of the Trade Act of 1974; this notice is 
published pursuant to section 206.3 of the 
Commission’s rules.

Issued: January 8, 2004.
By order of the Commission.

Marilyn R. Abbott,
Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. 04–694 Filed 1–12–04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020–02–U

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION

[Inv. No. 337–TA–498]

Certain Insect Traps; Notice of 
Decision Not To Review an Initial 
Determination Granting a Motion To 
Amend the Complaint and Notice of 
Investigation To Add Four 
Respondents

AGENCY: International Trade 
Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that 
the U.S. International Trade 
Commission has determined not to 
review an initial determination (ID) 
issued by the presiding administrative 
law judge (ALJ) in the above-captioned 
investigation amending the complaint 
and notice of investigation to add four 
entities as respondents in the 
investigation.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Andrea Casson, Esq., Office of the 
General Counsel, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW., 
Washington, DC 20436, telephone 202–
205–3105. Copies of all nonconfidential 
documents filed in connection with this 
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investigation are or will be available for 
inspection during official business 
hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the 
Office of the Secretary, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street SW., Washington, DC 20436, 
telephone 202–205–2000. General 
information concerning the Commission 
may also be obtained by accessing its 
Internet server (http://www.usitc.gov). 
The public record for this investigation 
may be viewed on the Commission’s 
electronic docket (EDIS) at http://
edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired 
persons are advised that information on 
the matter can be obtained by contacting 
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202–
205–1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
Commission instituted this investigation 
on September 12, 2003, based on a 
complaint filed by American Biophysics 
Corp. (‘‘ABC’’) of North Kingstown, 
Rhode Island. 68 FR 24755. The 
complaint, as supplemented, alleged 
violations of section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930 in the importation into the 
United States, sale for importation, and/
or sale within the United States after 
importation of certain insect traps that 
infringe the claims of ABC’s U.S. 
Patents No. 6,286,249 and No. 
6,145,243. The notice of investigation 
identified one respondent, Blue Rhino 
Corp. (‘‘BRC’’) of Winston-Salem, North 
Carolina.

On November 10, 2003, ABC filed a 
motion to amend its complaint to add 
the following four entities as 
respondents in the investigation: Blue 
Rhino Consumer Products (‘‘BRCP’’), 
LLC of Winston-Salem, North Carolina; 
Blue Rhino Global Sourcing, LLC 
(‘‘BRGS’’), of Winston-Salem, North 
Carolina; Guangdong Dong Fang Imp. & 
Exp. Corp. of Shenzhen, China; and 
Lentek International, Inc. of Kissimmee, 
Florida. The Commission investigative 
attorney supported the motion. Existing 
respondent BRC and proposed 
respondents BRCP and BRGS filed a 
response indicating that they did not 
oppose the motion.

On December 8, 2003, the presiding 
administrative law judge issued an ID 
(Order No. 5) granting ABC’s motion. No 
petitions for review of the ID were filed.

This action is taken under the 
authority of section 337 of the Tariff Act 
of 1930, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and section 
210.42(h) of the Commission Rules of 
Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 
210.42(h).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: January 7, 2004.
Marilyn R. Abbott,
Secretary.
[FR Doc. 04–675 Filed 1–12–04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION

[Inv. No. 337–TA–504]

In the Matter of Certain Signature 
Capture Transaction Devices and 
Component Parts Thereof, and 
Systems That Employ Such Devices; 
Notice of Investigation

AGENCY: International Trade 
Commission.
ACTION: Institution of investigation 
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on 
December 9, 2003, under section 337 of 
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 
U.S.C. 1337, on behalf of NCR 
Corporation of Dayton, Ohio. An 
amended complaint was filed on 
December 24, 2003, and a supplement to 
the amended complaint was filed on 
December 29, 2003. The complaint, as 
amended and supplemented, alleges 
violations of section 337 in the 
importation into the United States, the 
sale for importation, and the sale within 
the United States after importation of 
certain signature capture transaction 
devices and component parts thereof, 
and systems that employ such devices, 
by reason of infringement of claims 20, 
46, 55, and 65 of U.S. Patent No. 
6,539,363. The complaint further alleges 
that an industry in the United States 
exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of 
section 337.

The complainant requests that the 
Commission institute an investigation 
and, after the investigation, issue a 
permanent exclusion order and 
permanent cease and desist orders.
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for 
any confidential information contained 
therein, is available for inspection 
during official business hours (8:45 a.m. 
to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the 
Secretary, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street SW., Room 
112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone 
(202) 205–2000. Hearing impaired 
individuals are advised that information 
on this matter can be obtained by 
contacting the Commission’s TDD 
terminal on (202) 205–1810. Persons 
with mobility impairments who will 
need special assistance in gaining access 
to the Commission should contact the 

Office of the Secretary at (202) 205–
2000. General information concerning 
the Commission may also be obtained 
by accessing its Internet server at
http://www.usitc.gov. The public record 
for this investigation may be viewed on 
the Commission’s electronic docket 
imaging system (EDIS) at http://
edis.usitc.gov.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Jeffrey R. Whieldon, Esq., Office of 
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 
telephone (202) 205–2580.

Authority: The authority for institution of 
this investigation is contained in section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and 
in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules 
of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 
(2003).

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the complaint, the U.S. 
International Trade Commission, on 
January 6, 2004, ordered that—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain signature capture 
transaction devices, or component parts 
thereof, or systems that employ such 
devices by reason of infringement of 
claims 20, 46, 55, or 65 of U.S. Patent 
No. 6,539,363 and whether an industry 
in the United States exists as required 
by subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

(2) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served:

(a) The complainant is—NCR 
Corporation, 1700 South Patterson 
Boulevard, Dayton, Ohio 45479–0001.

(b) The respondents are the following 
companies alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are parties upon which 
the complaint is to be served:

Ingenico S.A., d/b/a, Groupe Ingenico, 
9, Quai de Dion Bouton, 92816. 
Puteaux Cedex, France.

Ingenico Corp., 1003 Mansell Road, 
Roswell, Georgia 30076.

SMTC Corporation, 635 Hood Road, 
Markham, Ontario, Canada L3R4N6.

(c) Jeffrey R. Whieldon Esq., Office of 
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street SW., Suite 401, Washington, DC 
20436, who shall be the Commission 
investigative attorney, party to this 
investigation; and

(4) For the investigation so instituted, 
the Honorable Charles E. Bullock is 
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